
1 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

Minutes of Meeting of Environment Committee of Mid Ulster District Council 
held on Tuesday 11 June 2019 in Council Offices, Burn Road, Cookstown  
 
 
Members Present  Councillor Buchanan, Chair 

 
Councillors Brown, Burton, Cuthbertson, Graham, 
McAleer, McFlynn, McGinley, B McGuigan, S McGuigan, 
McNamee, Milne, O’Neill, Totten, Wilson 

  
Officers in Mr Cassells, Director of Environment and Property 
Attendance Mr Kelso, Director of Public Health and Infrastructure 
 Mr Lowry, Head of Technical Services  
                                           Mr McAdoo, Head of Environmental Services (7.19 pm) 
                                           Mrs Patterson, Principal Environmental Health Officer 
                                           Mr Scullion, Head of Property Services 

Mr Wilkinson, Head of Building Control  
Miss Thompson, Democratic Services Officer   

    
 
The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm 
  
 
E107/19 Apologies 
 
Councillor Glasgow. 
 
E108/19 Declarations of Interest 
 
The Chair reminded Members of their responsibility with regard to declarations of  
interest. 
 
E109/19 Chair’s Business  
 
The Director of Public Health and Infrastructure advised of correspondence received 
from Northern Ireland Housing Executive which referred to the Housing Executive’s 
work with Council in identifying suitable sites within the District for Travellers and 
their attendance at the Council’s Traveller Working Group.  The correspondence 
advised that the Housing Executive have appraised the eleven Council sites 
identified but that all have constraints and are deemed unsuitable. On that basis, the 
Housing Executive are now trying to establish potential sites in private ownership 
however it was advised that there is existing capacity at Traveller sites in Belfast, 
Craigavon and Derry/Londonderry.  The Housing Executive confirmed that their 
resources were limited and there was a difficulty in engaging with the Council 
Traveller Working Group on an ongoing basis, it was advised that the Housing 
Executive could no longer attend the working group meetings but agreed to provide 
two reports a year to the Environment Committee by way of update. 
 
The Director of Public Health and Infrastructure also advised of correspondence 
received from Department for Infrastructure in relation to the Draft Design Guide for 
Traveller Sites consultation which would close on 31 July and that the two letters of 
correspondence would be discussed at the next Traveller Working Group. 



2 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

Councillor McGinley expressed his shock that the Northern Ireland Housing 
Executive were withdrawing from the working group, he stated that the working 
group needed to consider its next steps and also needed to engage with the 
consultation.  Councillor McGinley stated he was the Chair of the working group but 
that unfortunately the next meeting conflicted with another diary engagement which 
also affected other Councillors and that he had asked that the next meeting of the 
Traveller Working Group be rescheduled.  The Councillor asked if the response 
timeframe to the consultation would pose a difficulty. 
 
The Director of Public Health and Infrastructure advised that the timeline for the 
response to consultation should not prove a difficulty and that it would be possible to 
bring a draft response to the next Environment Committee meeting. 
 
Councillor McGinley proposed that the next meeting of the Traveller Working Group 
be rescheduled to discuss the correspondence received from Northern Ireland 
Housing Executive and response to consultation. 
 
Councillor McNamee seconded Councillor McGinley’s proposal. 
 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to reschedule the next meeting of 

the Traveller Working Group. 
 
Councillor Wilson asked for update in relation to Travellers located at Hillhead. 
 
The Director of Public Health and Infrastructure advised that Travellers were still 
located in the layby at Hillhead, that this layby is owned by DfI Roads and that they 
were working with their own legal teams on the matter.  The Director stated he 
expected to have an update for the next Traveller Working Group. 
 
Councillor Wilson stated he would have expected an update before now and asked 
officers to get an up to date position and circulate to Members. 
 
Councillor McFlynn asked that the letter from Northern Ireland Housing Executive be 
circulated to Members. 
 
The Director of Public Health and Infrastructure advised that the letter would be sent 
out with the papers for the next Traveller Working Group. 
 
Councillor Burton referred to playgroup in Clogher which is relocating to the former 
Clogher Primary School on a temporary basis, the Councillor stated there was some 
concern amongst parents in that the public toilets were located at the school and 
asked that consideration be given to closing the toilets for the morning session of the 
playgroup (up to 1pm) as this would mean that the gates could be closed and there 
would be no childcare issues.  The Councillor stated that there was alternative toilet 
provision located in Augher and Fivemiletown and that the parents of children 
attending the playgroup would like confirmation from Council that the toilets at the 
former Primary School will remain closed to 1pm for the period in which the 
playgroup will be located there (approximately one year). 
 
Councillor McAleer concurred with Councillor Burton’s comments and that an 
alternative was needed as soon as possible, this would also help to eliminate spread 
of infection.  The Councillor felt that the toilets at the former Clogher Primary School 



3 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

should be closed permanently and relocated as there were other suitable locations in 
Clogher. 
 
The Director of Environment and Property stated that he took on board Members’ 
concerns and referred to possible Service Level Agreement with a shop/filling station 
in Clogher which would allow the toilets at the former Primary School to be closed.  
The Director advised that a similar SLA arrangement had worked well in 
Draperstown.  The Director suggested that officers explore the SLA approach with 
the fallback being to close the toilets at the Primary School between 9am-1pm. 
 
Councillor Burton proposed that officers proceed with investigating the possibility of a 
Service Level Agreement between Council and other suitable premises in Clogher 
for the provision of public toilet facilities. 
 
Councillor McAleer seconded Councillor Burton’s proposal. 
 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to investigate the possibility of a 

Service Level Agreement between Council and other suitable premises 
in Clogher for the provision of public toilet facilities. 

 
Councillor Cuthbertson referred to ongoing dog fouling problem right across the 
District and asked that a report be brought back to the next Committee meeting 
outlining who is authorised to issue fixed penalties with a view to extending the 
authorisation to park wardens. 
 
Councillor Cuthbertson advised he had recently been invited by Dungannon Ladies 
Bowling Club to open the premises at Drumcoo for the season, the Councillor stated 
that there were a number of issues relating to damage to the building, graffiti, rubbish 
and broken glass.  The Councillor advised that the Bowling Club had informed him of 
children in school uniform outside the premises who were smoking/using vapes and 
that persons had also gained access to the roof of the building.  Councillor 
Cuthbertson advised that the Bowling Club have expressed concern in relation to the 
security of the building and that whilst there are CCTV cameras in place it was not 
known whether these cameras were in operation. The Councillor stated that the 
bowling green attracts visitors from all over Northern Ireland and asked officers to 
make contact with the Bowling Club as a matter of urgency. 
 
Mr McAdoo entered the meeting at 7.19 pm. 
 
Councillor Milne stated that additional officers who can issue fixed penalties would 
be beneficial, the Councillor stated he would also like to know how many fixed 
penalty notices had been issued in the last year. 
 
The Director of Public Health and Infrastructure advised that report in relation to 
authorising officers and number of fixed penalty notices issued would be provided for 
September meeting. 
 
Councillor Cuthbertson stated that the summer was a crucial period and felt there 
should be increased patrols and cleansing taking place over the next couple of 
months. 
 



4 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

Councillor B McGuigan referred to previous discussion in which additional bins were 
requested for the Draperstown area, the Councillor stated that the infrastructure was 
now in place and therefore there was no excuse for dog walkers not to use the bins. 
 
Councillor McAleer felt that an advertising campaign highlighting that ordinary bins 
can be used to dispose of dog foul (if bagged) would be useful as there was a lack of 
knowledge in the public in this regard. 
 
Councillor Burton stated that the Eco Park in Aughnacloy had recently suffered from 
a lot of anti social behaviour, that a seat was broken, there was broken glass and the 
life saving device at the pond had gone missing.  Councillor Burton also referred to 
the pilot in Aughnacloy and asked for an update in how successful the watching eyes 
campaign had been. 
 
Councillor Wilson asked what criteria is used when allocating bins, the Councillor 
referred to previous request for bins at Lomond Heights in Cookstown and stated 
that one bin had been provided which was totally inadequate for the area whilst 
Fountain Road in the town had three bins.  Councillor Wilson felt there was no 
uniformity in relation to the provision of bins. 
 
The Director of Environment and Property agreed that there was no consistency in 
relation to bin provision as there were currently three different policies in place.  The 
Director advised that work was ongoing in bringing forward a policy for Mid Ulster 
Council and a report would be brought to Committee in due course. 
 
Councillor Wilson asked that a further bin be situated at either end of Lomond 
Heights in the interim. 
 
Councillor Cuthbertson advised that he had been driving on the A4 at 9am that 
morning and every bin along the road was overflowing. 
 
 
Matters for Decision 
 
E110/19 DfI Roads Proposal to Mid Ulster District Council – Proposed 

30MPH Speed Limit – Gulladuff Road, Bellaghy 
 
Members considered previously circulated report which sought agreement in relation 
to proposal from Department for Infrastructure Roads with regard to proposed 
30MPH speed limit at Gulladuff Road, Bellaghy. 
 

Proposed by Councillor S McGuigan 
Seconded by Councillor McAleer and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to endorse the proposal submitted 

by Department for Infrastructure Roads in relation to proposed 30MPH 
speed limit at Gulladuff Road, Bellaghy. 

 
 
 
 



5 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

E111/19 DfI Roads Proposal to Mid Ulster District Council – Proposed 
40MPH Speed Limit – Moneymore Road, Magherafelt  

 
Members considered previously circulated report which sought agreement in relation 
to proposal from Department for Infrastructure Roads with regard to proposed 
40MPH speed limit at Moneymore Road, Magherafelt. 
 

Proposed by Councillor S McGuigan 
Seconded by Councillor McAleer and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to endorse the proposal submitted 

by Department for Infrastructure Roads in relation to proposed 40MPH 
speed limit at Moneymore Road, Magherafelt. 

 
E112/19 DfI Roads Proposal to Mid Ulster District Council – Proposed 

Provision of a Disabled Persons’ Parking Bay at Jockey Lane, 
Moy  

 
Members considered previously circulated report which sought agreement in relation 
to proposal from Department for Infrastructure Roads with regard to proposed 
provision of a Disabled Persons’ Parking Bay at Jockey Lane, Moy. 
 

Proposed by Councillor S McGuigan 
Seconded by Councillor McAleer and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to endorse the proposal submitted 

by Department for Infrastructure Roads in relation to proposed 
provision of a Disabled Persons’ Parking Bay at Jockey Lane, Moy. 

 
E113/19 DfI Roads Proposal to Mid Ulster District Council – Proposed 

Revocation of a Disabled Persons’ Parking Bay – Moore Street, 
Aughnacloy 

 
Members considered previously circulated report which sought agreement in relation 
to proposal from Department for Infrastructure Roads with regard to proposed 
revocation of a Disabled Persons’ Parking Bay at Moore Street, Aughnacloy. 
 
In response to Councillor Burton’s question the Director of Environment and Property 
advised that a disabled persons’ parking bay can be removed when the applicant 
has moved away from the area/died. 
  

Proposed by Councillor S McGuigan  
Seconded by Councillor McAleer and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to endorse the proposal submitted 

by Department for Infrastructure Roads in relation to proposed 
revocation of a Disabled Persons’ Parking Bay at Moore Street, 
Aughnacloy. 

 
 
 



6 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

E114/19 DfI Roads Proposal to Mid Ulster District Council – Proposed No 
Waiting At Any Time – Market Square, Dungannon 

 
Members considered previously circulated report which sought agreement in relation 
to proposal from Department for Infrastructure Roads with regard to proposed no 
waiting at any time at Market Square, Dungannon. 
 
Councillor Cuthbertson referred to the map submitted from DfI Roads which he felt 
was not accurate and that it was unclear where the no waiting at any time is to be 
located. 
 
The Director of Environment and Property advised that the location can be clarified. 
  

Proposed by Councillor S McGuigan  
Seconded by Councillor McAleer and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to endorse the proposal submitted 

by Department for Infrastructure Roads in relation to proposed no 
waiting at any time at Market Square, Dungannon, subject to amended 
plan indicating the location of No Waiting At Any Time. 

 
E115/19 DfI Roads Proposal to Mid Ulster District Council – Proposed 

Limited Waiting At Any Time at Thomas Street, Dungannon  
 
Members considered previously circulated report which sought agreement in relation 
to proposal from Department for Infrastructure Roads with regard to proposed limited 
waiting at any time at Thomas Street, Dungannon. 
 

Proposed by Councillor S McGuigan 
Seconded by Councillor McAleer and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to endorse the proposal submitted 

by Department for Infrastructure Roads in relation to proposed limited 
waiting at any time at Thomas Street, Dungannon. 

 
E116/19 Environmental Services Service Improvement Plan 2019/20 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which detailed Environmental Services 
Service Improvement Plan for 2019/20. 
 
E117/19 Landfill Closure and Aftercare Financial Provision 
 
The Head of Environmental Services presented previously circulated report which 
provided update on the closure and aftercare arrangements for the Council’s landfill 
sites and to seek approval for revised Local Authority Deed Arrangements. 
 

Proposed by Councillor S McGuigan 
Seconded by Councillor Milne and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to approve the revised Local 

Authority Deed Agreements (as circulated at appendix to report) and 
financial provision of £3,500,168 for the three landfill sites. 



7 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

E118/19 Dual Language Signage Surveys 
 
The Head of Building Control presented previously circulated report which advised 
on the results of surveys undertaken on all applicable residents on the streets/roads 
in response to Dual Language Signage nameplate requests. 
 
Councillor McNamee proposed the report recommendations. 
 
Councillor McGinley seconded Councillor McNamee’s proposal. 
 
Councillor Cuthbertson proposed that Council do not proceed with the erection of 
signage. 
 
Councillor Brown seconded Councillor Cuthbertson’s proposal. 
 
Councillor McNamee stated that Dual Language signage was within Council policy 
and the report should be for information. 
 
The Head of Building Control advised that the surveys under consideration were 
approved under the old policy and have therefore been presented tonight under the 
old policy ie. for decision.  The officer advised that this would be the last batch of 
surveys being brought under the old policy. 
 
Members voted on Councillor Cuthbertson’s proposal –  
 
For – 6 
Against – 9   
 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to agree the application of Dual 

Language Nameplates in Irish for –  
▪ The Orchard, Draperstown 
▪ Back Lower Road, Dungannon  
▪ Regency Drive, Magherafelt  
▪ Dalriada Park, Dungannon  
▪ Wellbrook Avenue, Dungannon  
▪ Carrycastle Road, Aughnacloy 
▪ Chapel Street, Cookstown  
▪ Glen Gardens, Maghera 
▪ Killymoon Street, Cookstown  
▪ Tirnaskea Road, Pomeroy 
▪ Gortscraheen Road, Pomeroy  
▪ Loughview Close, Stewartstown  

 
Councillor McNamee asked if any Dual Language signage had been damaged over 
the election period.  The Councillor asked for a report on the number of Dual 
Language signs damaged, the type of sign (gateway, road, street) being damaged 
and detail of hotspots in which signs are being repeatedly damaged. 
 
The Director of Environment and Property advised that some Dual Language signs 
were damaged over the election period and that some of these signs are being 
continually damaged.  The Director advised that Council are trying to take action to 
catch the perpetrators of the damage. 



8 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

Councillor Burton referred to the number of signs damaged across the District and 
that people do not seem to have any regard for road nameplate signage.  The 
Councillor felt that the damaged signage was a liability and that if a review was being 
undertaken it should consider all road name signage in the District. 
 
Councillor McFlynn referred to Dual Language signage erected in the Loup area in 
which a number of nameplates have since been defaced or removed.  The 
Councillor stated that the signage had been erected in rural areas and that 
emergency services rely on this signage. 
 
Councillor Cuthbertson advised that he had previously forwarded detail of a number 
of broken road name signs to the Director of Environment and Property. 
 
Councillor McNamee stated he understood what Councillor Burton was asking for 
and that it was a bigger piece of work but that he wanted statistics in relation to 
damage to Dual Language signage in order to forward to Police. 
 
Councillor Burton stated that road name signs are vital in rural areas and emergency 
services depend on same.  Councillor Burton proposed that if a report was being 
brought back detailing the damage and location of signage it needed to include all 
signage not just Dual Language exclusively. 
 
Councillor Cuthbertson seconded Councillor Burton’s proposal. 
 
Councillor McNamee proposed a report be brought back to Committee detailing the 
number of Dual Language signs damaged and where located. 
 
Councillor McGinley seconded Councillor McNamee’s proposal. 
 
Councillor Burton stated she did not understand why Dual Language signage was 
more important. 
 
Councillor B McGuigan stated that a number of road name signs are often damaged 
through poor driving etc but that Dual Language signage was being deliberately 
damaged because of its nature. 
 
The Director of Environment and Property stated that a review could be undertaken 
in two stages with a report on damage to Dual Language being brought back first 
and a report detailing all road name signage at a later date. 
 
In response to comment from Councillor McFlynn the Director of Environment and 
Property advised that operatives pick up damaged signage when out 
strimming/cutting grass. 
 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council –  

1  That a report be brought back to the Environment Committee 
detailing the number of Dual Language signs damaged, the type of 
sign (gateway, road, street) being damaged and detail of hotspots 
where signs are being repeatedly damaged. 

2 That a report be brought back to the Environment Committee 
detailing the location and number of road name signs damaged 
across the District 



9 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

E119/19 Street Naming and Property Numbering 
 
The Head of Building Control presented previously circulated report regarding the 
naming of new residential housing developments within Mid Ulster.  
 
Site off Aghareany Road, Donaghmore 
 

Proposed by Councillor Burton  
Seconded by Councillor Graham and  

 
Resolved  That it be recommended to Council to name development off 

Aghareany Road, Donaghmore as Aghareany Court. 
 
Site off Ballyronan Road, Magherafelt 
 

Proposed by Councillor Totten  
Seconded by Councillor McFlynn and  

 
Resolved  That it be recommended to Council to name development off 

Ballyronan Road, Magherafelt as Ronan Valley Business Park. 
 
Site off Main Street, Castlecaulfield 
 

Proposed by Councillor McGinley 
Seconded by Councillor S McGuigan and  

 
Resolved  That it be recommended to Council to name development off Main 

Street, Castlecaulfield as Old Forge Lane. 
 
Site off Aghareany Road, Donaghmore  
 

Proposed by Councillor McGinley  
Seconded by Councillor S McGuigan and  

 
Resolved  That it be recommended to Council to name development off 

Aghareany Road, Donaghmore as Larden Meadow. 
 
E120/19 Service Level Agreement for provision of Structural Engineering 

Services  
 
The Head of Building Control presented previously circulated report which sought 
approval to sign a Service Level Agreement between Mid Ulster District Council and 
Fermanagh and Omagh District Council for the provision of specialist structural 
engineering services for the Mid Ulster Building Control Service. 
 

Proposed by Councillor McFlynn  
Seconded by Councillor McAleer and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to approve the signing of the 

Service Level Agreement between Mid Ulster District Council and 
Fermanagh and Omagh District Council for the provision of specialist 



10 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

structural engineering services for the Mid Ulster Building Control 
Service. 

 
E121/19 Regulatory Information and Management System (RIAMS) 
 
The Principal Environmental Health Officer presented previously circulated report 
which sought approval to continue with the Regulatory Information and Management 
System for the Environmental Health Service for Mid Ulster District Council for a 
further three year period through RH Environmental Ltd. 
 
Councillor S McGuigan asked if anyone else provides this type of software. 
 
The Director of Public Health an Infrastructure advised that this was a specialised 
piece of software to assist the professional officer team. 
 

Proposed by Councillor McFlynn  
Seconded by Councillor Burton and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to approve the signing of licence 

agreements with RH Environmental for three years at £5,610 for the 
first year. 

 
E122/19 The Roads Miscellaneous Provisions Act (NI) 2010 
 
The Principal Environmental Health Officer presented previously circulated report 
which sought determination on four applications for Road Closure Orders in 
connection with special events that are being held in July 2019. 
 
Councillor Cuthbertson asked who was responsible for ensuring groups follow 
procedure in relation to traffic management. 
 
The Principal Environmental Health Officer advised that the applicant has to prove 
they have a traffic management company in place on their application.  The officer 
advised that Council have no legal remit to ensure procedure is followed. 
 
Councillor Cuthbertson asked if a group did not follow procedure this year whether 
Council have any grounds to refuse an application next year. 
 
The Principal Environmental Health Officer advised that if a group do not follow 
procedure and then make a further application their previous conduct would be taken 
into consideration. 
 
Councillor S McGuigan asked if this Council was one of the few adhering to this 
legislation as he had been advised that other Councils do not.  The Councillor asked 
if this Council was putting groups through something which was not necessary, and 
at a cost, as the type of events being arranged are mainly for the community or a 
charity.  Councillor S McGuigan advised that there are groups that have gone 
through the process and those that have not and that insurances are accepted for 
both. 
 



11 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

The Director of Public Health and Infrastructure advised that he could not answer for 
other Councils and that the legislation was foisted upon Council who had no option 
to make any changes to it. 
 
Councillor S McGuigan stated that the situation needed to be reviewed as Members 
are receiving negative feedback in relation to the application of the legislation. 
 
The Director of Public Health and Infrastructure stated a working group could be set 
up to which stakeholders ie. Police and DFI Roads could be invited.  The working 
group could review how the legislation is currently being applied along with any 
potential for a change to Council’s remit with a report being brought back to the 
Environment Committee. 
 
Councillor S McGuigan proposed that a working group be set up to review the 
application of The Roads Miscellaneous Provisions Act (NI) 2010. 
 
Councillor Wilson stated that whilst he recognised that officers have been very 
helpful to groups with completion of application forms he would support Councillor  
S McGuigan’s comments that there seemed to be a difference across the Council 
areas in interpreting this legislation and it was important to have a review involving 
all stakeholders to the process. 
 
Councillor McAleer felt that it was because Stormont was not functioning that there 
was nowhere to take this legislation back to have it amended. 
 
Councillor S McGuigan stated he understood how the legislation came about but the 
difficulty seemed to be in its interpretation across Councils. 
 
The Principal Environmental Health Officer stated she sat on the SOLACE working 
group and could confirm that other Councils were administering the legislation 
however there may be differences across the areas in how it is being policed. 
 
Councillor Wilson seconded Councillor S McGuigan’s proposal. 
 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council –  

1 That each Road Closure Order outlined in Sections 3.2 to 3.5 of the 
report be made in line with DfI guidance, subject to applicants 
providing any outstanding documentation; no objections being 
received during the consultation process and DfI consent being 
granted. 

2 To set up a working group to review the application of The Roads 
Miscellaneous Provisions Act (NI) 2010 with a report being brought 
back to the Environment Committee. 

 
 
Matters for Information 
 
E123/19 Minutes of Environment Committee held on 1 April 2019 
 
Members noted minutes of Environment Committee held on 1 April 2019. 
 



12 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

Councillor McNamee referred to previous discussion in which a contractor carried 
out works on behalf of NI Water in Cookstown and left some footpaths in a 
substandard state, the Councillor advised that a number of people have tripped as a 
result of the way the footpaths have been left.  Councillor McNamee stated that the 
matter has been raised with the contractor but that the remedial works remain 
outstanding. 
 
The Director of Public Health and Infrastructure stated that officers were aware of the 
issue and advised that the contractor started the works when Council still held the 
licence for Public Realm work, as this licence had now been handed back to DfI 
Roads the Director agreed to raise the matter formally with DfI Roads who now have 
the legal responsibility. 
 
Councillor Burton referred to previous discussion at Environment Committee on 12 
March 2019 in relation to need for footpath at Eglish and other locations and 
Council’s general power of competence.  The Councillor stated that there was 
supposed to be a follow up in relation to these discussions and she asked that this 
happen as some had been in the process for a long time. 
 
The Director of Environment and Property advised that a meeting had been 
organised with DfI Roads for this Friday to discuss footpaths in Eglish and Maghera 
specifically and that Members had been advised of this meeting.  In relation to 
general power of competence, the Director advised that arrangements were being 
put in place to organise a workshop for Members in the next week to ten days.  
 
E124/19 Northern Ireland Local Authority Collected Municipal Waste 

Management (LACMW) Report for October to December 2018 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on Council 
performance in relation to recycling and landfill diversion targets as outlined in the 
NIEA Northern Ireland Local Authority Waste Management Statistics Report for 
Quarter 3 of 2018/19, October to December 2018. 
 
Councillor McGinley commended staff and residents on Council again maintaining 
the highest household waste recycling rate, the Councillor stated that everyone 
needs to keep pushing in order to improve further. 
 
Councillor Burton felt that the recycling officers that go out to schools provide a vital 
role and that the students often help to bring the message home to 
parents/grandparents.  The Councillor also referred to the Eco Speak competition in 
which students put a lot of effort into their ideas. 
 
Councillor McGinley stated he had been at the Eco Speak competition before and 
that it would be useful for the topics being discussed and presentations made by 
students to be circulated to Members as there are many good ideas being brought 
forward. 
 
E125/19 Recycling Centre Improvement Works  
 
Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on improvement 
works to a number of Recycling Centre facilities. 
 



13 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

E126/19 Revised Policy Guide on Exhumations 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on the revised 
Department for Communities Policy guidance for Exhumations in Council owned 
burial grounds. 
 
E127/19 Access at Polepatrick Cemetery and Park  
 
Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on access 
arrangements at Polepatrick Cemetery and Park. 
 
E128/19 Property Services Service Improvement Plan 2019/20 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which detailed Property Services Service 
Improvement Plan for 2019/20. 
 
E129/19 Building Control Workload 

Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on the workload 
analysis for Building Control. 
 
E130/19 Entertainment Licensing Applications  

Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on Entertainment 
Licensing Applications across the Mid Ulster District. 
 
E131/19 Dual Language Signage Requests 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which advised of requests for Dual 
Language Signage from residents on streets/roads in the District. 
 
E132/19 Building Control Service Improvement Plan 2019/20 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which detailed Building Control Service 
Improvement Plan for 2019/20. 
 
E133/19 Making Links to Promote Health and Wellbeing  
 
Members noted previously circulated report which highlighted the Mid Ulster 
Community Pharmacy Partnership event ‘Making Links to Promote Health and 
Wellbeing’ which took place on 26 March 2019. 
 
E134/19 Environmental Health Service Improvement Plan 2019/20 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which detailed the Environmental Health 
Service Improvement Plan for 2019/20. 
 
E135/19 Entertainment Licencing Correspondence 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which outlined response received from 
the Department for Communities Permanent Secretary in relation to correspondence 
regarding legislative change for Entertainment Licencing. 



14 – Environment Committee (11.06.19) 

 

 
E136/19 Technical Services Service Improvement Plan 2019/20 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which detailed the Technical Services 
Service Improvement Plan for 2019/20. 
 
 
Local Government (NI) Act 2014 - Confidential Business 
 

Proposed by Councillor McNamee 
Seconded by Councillor McGinley and 

 
Resolved In accordance with Section 42, Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local 

Government Act (NI) 2014 that Members of the public be asked to 
withdraw from the meeting whilst Members consider items E137/19 to 
E143/19. 

 
 Matters for Decision  

E137/19 Collection and treatment of Recycling Centre residual 
waste  

E138/19 Contract for Tullyvar Landfill Site Phase 4 Capping Works  
E139/19 Update in relation to the legacy agreement on vehicle 

tracking system  
E140/19 Tender report for the appointment of Vehicle Suppliers  

 
Matters for Information   
E141/19 Confidential Minutes of Environment Committee held on  

1 April 2019 
E142/19 Off Street Car Parking Update 2018-2019 
E143/19 Capital Projects Update 
 

E144/19 Duration of Meeting 
 
The meeting was called for 7.00 pm and ended at 8.30 pm.  

 

 

 

 

 

         CHAIR ________________________        

 

 

DATE _________________________ 


